
Massachusetts State Lottery Commission 
Compensation Committee 

Second Meeting 
Tuesday, May 29, 2012 

 
Minutes 

 
In Attendance: 
Treasurer Grossman, Paul Sternburg, Commissioner Beth Boland, Commissioner Tim 
McMahon, Martin Benison, Comptroller, Jane Gabriel (Acting General Counsel for the 
Executive Office of Public Safety and Designee for Secretary Mary Beth Heffernan) 
(arrived after the minutes were approved), Al Gordon (Treasurer’s Office), Jamey Tesler 
(Treasurer’s Office), Cathy Judd-Stein (MSLC) 
 
I.  Opening and Adoption of Minutes: 
 
 Treasurer Grossman called the meeting to order at 9:50 a.m.  He asked if there 
was a motion to accept the minutes from the last meeting of the Compensation 
Committee on April 30, 2012.  Commissioner McMahon moved to accept the minutes 
and Commissioner Boland seconded that motion.  There was no discussion.  The minutes 
were approved – 4-0.   
 
II. Compensation Committee Charter: 
 
The Treasurer turned next to the revised draft charter which Cathy Judd-Stein reported 
reflected discussion from the last meeting as well as language proposed by Commissioner 
Boland.    

 The discussion first focused on Part D.  Section 1 was revised to provide for the 
evaluation of the Executive Director in connection with the setting of his/her 
compensation.  No questions were raised.  Next, Cathy Judd-Stein explained that 
consistent with Part A, which indicates that the purpose of the Compensation 
Committee relates to the compensation of the Lottery’s “executive management,” 
Part D, Section 2 states that the Executive Director will evaluate and set 
compensation of management personnel, and the Compensation Committee will 
review the process for both of those responsibilities and report its findings to the 
Commission.  The Treasurer explained that he sees the Committee’s 
responsibilities as broad, providing advice and counsel to the Executive Director 
with regard to non-union employees. It will be up to the Executive Director to set 
level of compensations and perform evaluations; in turn the Commission will 
review the Executive Director’s handling of those responsibilities.  The Treasurer 
stated that we want to avoid micro-managing here.  Commissioner Boland stated 
that other bodies do get into deeper review of management personnel, but there is 
no statutory authority here for that. Comptroller Benison stated that he agreed 
with the Treasurer, that management personnel is “in between” and that we 
should look at process.  He added, however, that he thought that it was important 
to include some oversight here as this would otherwise be the only group of 
Lottery employees on which the Commission would have no information. 

 



 Next, the discussion focused on Part B.  Cathy Judd-Stein explained that Section 
1, as discussed at the last meeting, permits the Chair, with the Commission’s 
approval, to appoint individuals – beyond the membership of the Commission – 
who may have expertise in compensation matters.  Section 3, she explained, was 
offered by Commissioner Boland permitting the Chair to remove or replace 
Committee members, again, subject to the Commission’s approval.  This replaced 
general language providing for service until successors are duly appointed.  
Turning to Section 2, Cathy Judd-Stein explained that the second sentence 
addressed discussion from the previous meeting.  Under this draft, Committee 
members are required to disclose conflicts to the Committee, including all filings 
made under the state conflict of interest law which might otherwise only be 
disclosed to the members’ appointing officials.  Commissioner Boland asked that 
the following language begin Part B, Section 2:  “The Commission shall make a 
determination that each member of the Committee is duly qualified to serve on 
the Committee, and will exercise independent judgment in such service.”   

 
 The Treasurer began discussion questioning how best to determine competencies 

and independence with regard to the Commission members.  He suggested that 
there be a sentence here in the charter that gives the Chair and Commission as 
much leeway to ensure that Compensation Committee members are qualified and 
independent without encroaching on the Commission members’ appointment 
processes.  Commissioner Boland explained that there are no specific 
qualifications set forth in the charter and it is important that the Compensation 
Committee be particularly independent, particularly with regard to any prior or 
continuing relationships with the Executive Director.  The Treasurer said he 
thought it might make sense for the Compensation Committee members to 
confirm the qualifications and independent judgment of any outside member that 
he nominates to be on the Committee.  Comptroller Benison agreed.  He said that 
the Committee is a committee of the whole Commission, qualified already to set 
the Executive Director’s compensation.  He thought it made sense to apply an 
affirmative obligation to the Committee to verify independence for additional 
memberships.  Jamey Tesler explained that it is the appointing official’s 
responsibility to determine that members are qualified.  Commissioners come to 
their position on the Lottery Commission through three ways – by statute (ex 
officio), appointment (by the Governor) or as an elected official. He suggested 
that we be careful not to create an additional qualifying determination.  All are 
bound by the state conflict of interest law, Chapter 268A.  Counselor Jane Gabriel 
stated that she does not recommend a higher standard.  Compliance with Chapter 
268A is not foreign to her – it is applicable regularly for her as a state employee 
and she is comfortable with abstaining and making disclosures.  She suggested 
that outside members may need to be reminded of these responsibilities.  
Commissioner McMahon agreed.  He feels that the original appointment process 
vetted these issues and does not think the Compensation Committee should set a 
higher standard.  The Treasurer concluded the discussion with a recommendation 
that, in the event the Chair nominates someone to serve on the Compensation 
Committee, Part B, Section 2 provide that the Commission shall determine that 
such individual is duly qualified and will exercise independent judgment.  
Commissioner Boland indicated that she can accept this recommendation, but 
would still have preferred the broader language.   



 
III.   Next Steps and Adjournment:  
 

 Treasurer Grossman asked if the charter could be revised to reflect the discusson 
and re-circulated in advance of the next Commission meeting, which is scheduled 
to start 30 minutes before the Commission meeting on Tuesday, June 26. In 
addition to discussing the charter, Director Sternburg will report on management 
personnel.   

 
 Also, Paul Sternburg asked if the Commission would like to meet in advance of 

the Commission meeting in Braintree in conjunction with the Lottery’s 40th 
Anniversary celebration.  The Treasurer recommended that the Commission meet 
in July for those festivities – there was agreement among the Commissioners.  
The Commission will meet on July 24th in Braintree from 10:30 a.m. – noon and 
then join the Lottery for its picnic.   

 
A motion was made and seconded to adjourn, with a vote of approval by the 
Committee.  The Treasurer adjourned the meeting at 10:25 a.m.  

 
  
 


